CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 20, 2021 — OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, July 20, 2021, to order at 7:01 p.m. Present
were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek, and Thomas Dierberger. Also present
was City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Work Supervisor Jason Doboszenski, and Administrative
Intern Grant MacFarlane. Guests included Craig Sandberg of 11578 Riverview Rd NE.

Approval of Agenda:
MOTION by Zajicek to approve the agenda, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Dierberger to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Zajicek.
a. Approve Minutes of July 6, 2021 City Council Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 120,856.26
> Payroll $ 61,496.52
> PI/R taxes & Exp $ 12,597.93
> Other Claims $ 2.889.63
» Total Claims $197.840.34

c. Res No 07-20-21-58 — Appointing Probationary Firefighter
d. Res No 07-20-21-59 — Ratifying FRA Pension Increase
Motion carried by a vote of 3 Aye — 0 Nay — 1 Abstain.
Voting Aye — Kauffman, Zajicek, Dierberger
Warpula abstained due to conflict of interest.

Follow Up: Influence Church — City Rental Fee Waiver Request

Dierberger asked for a history of city rentals and religious organizations. Hagen explained that religious
organizations have used city facilities in the past at a full rate charged. Hagen added that past religious
organizations have used the facilities less often than Influence Church has requested.

Hagen stated that he had talked to Catalin Dima of Influence Church about using the Historical Society
for smaller meetings. They do intend to reach out to the Historical Society.

Kauffman stated that the City could provide Influence Church a six-month trial of using the facilities.
Kauffman added that the City could charge for cleaning services if required.

Council stated that they would like to confirm with City Attorney Jay Squires that Influence Church would
be eligible for the non-profit rate. If not eligible, Council would like to do a six-month trial with a fee
waiver for youth related activities. Council would allow these activities up to once a week.

Citizen’s Forum:
Craig Sandberg
Sandberg asked what the City was doing to address the hours being worked in the Rivers Edge site.



Hagen explained that the staff has reached out to the attorney to discuss possible avenues that the City
may take to enforce the established working hours.

Warpula asked if the City could shut down the construction site for a few days. Zajicek stated that the City
should fine the developer.

Zajicek asked how quickly City staff could create a new ordinance to address these issues. Hagen stated
that one could be prepared for the August 2" Council meeting.

Hagen shared that Rivers Edge has asked the City to extend their hours on July 24" to complete concrete
work with the goal that asphalt is installed before the Harvest Festival. Council stated that the extended
hours should be approved and that the City should ask that they not work in the development during the
Harvest Festival.

Review: CIP Funding Plan
Hagen outlined two draft CIP Funding Plans. Both plans identify future estimated expenses related to two
projects located on County highways that would have local share costs.

Both plans attempt to have a 3-4% increase each year to dedicated capital fund levy in order to pay for
future expenses in cash. One option identifies debt issuance due to the County highway projects. This is
shown as the timing of the projects and the cost is difficult to raise the funds without pushing back other
projects or purchases. A second option identifies outside funding sources in the form of grants or aid.
This is the preferred option as it would not require debt issuance. Staff would monitor available funding
options and apply for them when available.

Hagen added that the purpose of adding these items to the CIP was to show a funding mechanism should
the City support these projects moving forward.

2022 Preliminary Budget — Draft 2

Hagen stated that this draft of the budget had incorporated a proposed fourth public works full-time
employee and that it showed the potential impact of the additional worker. Hagen shared that the City’s
tax rate is still estimated to be reduced by 2% from 2021, even with the additional public works employee.

Warpula asked how much the City spent on extra labor in the past year. Hagen stated that the City spent
$12,000 - $13,000 on summer/seasonal help in 2021.

Kauffman asked about the total number of overtime hours taken by Public Works employees in the past
year. Hagen stated that each employee took roughly 100 hours. Hagen added that the intent of adding a
fourth employee was to improve the overall efficiency of public works and that it was not needed due to
overtime hours.

Kauffman and Warpula stated that they would not like to add a fourth full time Public Works employee
in 2022, but that they would be more willing to explore the issue again when Settlers Park is expanded.
Council showed consensus agreement.

Discussion: Waste Hauler Regulations
Kauffman stated that he would be willing to lower the number of waste hauler licenses issued by the City
from six to five. Warpula said that he would like to lower the number from six to three.



Warpula asked if Kauffman would be willing to lower the total number of licenses to a total of four
licenses.

Council showed consensus to drop the number of waste hauler licenses gradually to four. Council asked
that the total number of licenses be capped at six, but that the cap reduce if less than six apply. This process
will continue until the City only issues four waste hauler licenses.

Reports
Doboszenski
e A new bench is being installed in Settlers park
e Horseshoe pits in Settlers Park are being shortened and concrete pads will be poured for cornhole
Hagen
e The City’s audit agreement is ending. MacFarlane contacted other cities to see what they pay for
their auditor. Kauffman asked that the City do an RFP for new auditing services.
e Thereis a DNR grant for EAB available. Council consensus was to not apply for the grant this
year.

Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 9:15 p.m., seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



